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SHORT DURATION DISCUSSION 
ON IRREGULARITIES AND FRAU 

DULENT TRANSACTIONS IN 
BANKS  AND OTHER     FINANCIAL 

INSTITUTIONS—Contd. 

THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE (SHRI 
MANMOHAN SINGH): Madam Deputy 
Chairman, I am very grateful to all the hon. 
Members who have taken part in the debate 
on this vital issue which concerns the whole 
nation. 

Madam, I share the great concern, anguish 
and anger of the House that such a thing has 
happened. At this stage, I can assure the 
House that our approach in dealing with this 
unfortunate aberration is that we must find 
the truth, the whole truth, that we must punish 
all those who are guilty of having prepetrated 
this fraud, all those who are involved in it, 
and that we should take steps to recover the 
money. Now, this is the guiding principle that 
we have adopted in dealing with this massive 
fraud  on the  banking system. 

Issues have been raised with regard to the 
responsibility of the Government, the 
responsibility of the Reserve Bank of India. 
Also, names of certain individuals have been 
mentioned who are in no position to defend 
themselves in the House. The role of foreign 
banks have been brought in. Instead of 
dealing with all these issues raised by 
Members individually, I think I will deal with 
the broad class of issues that have been 
raised. 

First of all, I would like to deal with the 
responsibility Of the Government. What is the 
responsibility of the Government? I would 
like to say that the Government lays down the 
banking and monetary policies, in 
consultation with the Reserve Bank of India. 
The Government does not directly supervise 
the banks. They are supervised by the Reserve 
Bank of India in accordance with the 
provisions of the Banking Regulation  Act,  
and  the  Reserve      Bank 

of india Act. Madam, as you know, there are 
nationalised banks. There is the State Bank of 
India. There are private banks. There are 
foreign banks. As far as the private banks and 
the foreign banks are concerned, their 
functioning is directly the responsibility of the 
Reserve Bank ot India. As far as the co-
operative banks are concerned, the responsibi-
lity is shared between the NABARD on the 
one hand, and the Registrars of Co-operatives 
in the respective States on the other. The 
Government, of course, have Directors on the 
nationalized banks, as also on the State Hank 
of India. I should like to tell this House what 
these Boards do. Most of the credit decisions 
of the banks are taken in the management 
committees of these banks. This applies also 
to the State Bank of India. Now, Government 
Directors are not there on the management 
committees. What comes to the Board are 
broad policy issues and there I do accept that 
Government have a responsibility. But 
Government cannot police the 
micromanagement of the banks. That is one 
that I do want to submit to this august House. 

Now, in this House, issues of morality have 
been raised, responsibility has been brought 
up.. Some people have brought up the issue of 
a famous case which happened, i think, nearly 
35 years ago. Hon Shri Viren Shah or 
somebody else has mentioned this. I have 
studied three-fourths of the Mundhra 
Commission report; I have a copy of it be'fore 
me. Now, the issue involved in that particular 
case was the case of a specific transaction put 
through by the LIC. Then that issue was 
investigated. It was brought out that that 
transaction was put at the behest of the 
Ministry of Finance. This was not disowned 
and the Rt. Hon'ble Justice Chagla, rightly or 
wrongly, came to the conclusion that the then 
Finance Minister knew of it and approved it. I 
would respectfully submit that there is no par-
allel between that case and the case 
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now. If anybody can show that this fraudulent 
transactions were put at my behest or that I 
knew about those transactions, I would 
certainly accept the responsibility. I would 
not be worthy or being the country's 
Finance Minister... 

SHRI VIBEN J. SHAH (Maharashtra):  
That was never my intention. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I would be 
very, very thankful to the Members if they 
permit the Finance Minister to make his 
statement so that his chain of thought is not 
broken. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I 
Solemnly affirm that I had no know 
ledge of these transactions. I became 
aware of something going wrong in 
the banking system, that bank funds 
were being channelled wrongly to the 
stock market, some time in the 
month of -March. That is how this 
investigation into the State Bank 
began, and that I had clarified in the 
course of my reply to the questions 
last year. I think it was Shri Mor 
arka. ..  

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH (West Bengal) :  It 
was the inefficiency   of    the 
system. 

.   . (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Just now I 
have made the request, half a minute hifore... 

SHRI   MANMOHAN     SINGH:      I 
think Shri Morarka is not here... 
(Interrupttons).  

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Half a 
minute before only I have made the request.  
Please. 

SHRI -MANMOHAN SINGH: I think I 
was not here, but I was looking at the record. 
He said, well, we take credit, politicians take 
credit when things go right, why should 

they not take discredit when things go wrong? 
Now I admit, I think there is some truth in 
that, but how far are you going to stretch it? I 
will give you an instance. In May, 1991 a 
most ghasty thing happened. A future Prime 
Minister of this country was murdered in the 
State of Tamil Nadu. Tamil Nadu was then 
'directly under the President's Rule. Would 
you then say that the then Government, the 
then Home Minister and the then Prime 
Minister were responsible for that murder? I 
am not going to argue that. 

SHRI MURASOU MARAN (Tamil 
Nadu): Yes, the Tamil Nadu Government 
must have taken the responsibility and 
resigned. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am not 
going t0 argue that. Therefore, I am saying, 
there was a failure of the machinery there, but 
from that ycu cannot conclude that somebody 
in Delhi, therefore, must own moral 
responsibility and resign. 

SHRI INDER KUMAR GUJRAL, (Bihar): 
Madam, the relevant parallel would be Lai 
Bahadur Shastri's resignation. He was not 
driving the train himself, and he resigned... 
(fft-terruptions)... 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I would like 
to say that I have great respect for Shastriji. In 
this matter, I have searched my heart. I do not 
believe that I have done anything immoral 
or... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: Then Lai Bahadur 
did an immoral thing or what?... 
(Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, 
please. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: On that 
point, therefore, I want to clarify certain 
points... (Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please 
let him answer. Please. (Interrup 
tions).  

•nrr 
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SHRI YASHWANT SINGH (Bihar): 
Madam, I want to make one point. The hon. 
Finance Minister has drawn a parallel. I think 
it is very unfortunate that he should refer to 
that. I would appeal to him to be restrained in 
his presentation. Let him not further excite or 
agitate Members' minds which are already 
agitated. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am sorry if 
I have hurt anybody's feelings, that was not 
my intention. I apologise to the hon. Member 
if I have hurt his feelings. I am not making 
that accusation. I am saying that you cannot 
run the affaire of this Government that way. 
There is an old American saying that, if there 
isa theft in a village, you ask for the resig-
nation of the mayor- This country's 
Government cannot be run in this way. That is 
all I am submitting. If you find any direct act 
of omission or commission on my part, by all 
means hold me responsible, but I would res-
pectfully submit that this matter is before the 
JPC My conduct should be investigated by the 
JPC, and if it comes to that conclusion, 1 
think, that will be a different matter. 

Several Members   have    asked   me Ibis 
question about the stock market. Also  some 
Members have said    that this scam is a direct 
consequence     of the policies of economic 
liberalisation. I strongly    repudiate    that    
sort of a suggestion because this scam happen-
ed  when the  financial markets were under 
tight  control.  If you are refr-ring to the 
financial liberalisation, it is only in  June  that  
the control  on capital  issues  was  removed.  
What is it that you are hinting at when you say 
that this was directly the consequence   of  the     
policies   of  financial liberalisaiton? 

It has also been mentioned that the stock 
markets behaved in a particular way.   I have 
looked at the behaviour| of the stock markets.   
Between Jariu- ary, 199ft and October, 1990 
the stock markets    went up by 108 per   
cent, Then there wag a decline, and then in 

1991 the stock   markets   started    at about 
10W. I have looked at the behaviour of the 
stock markets in 1991. I think that till February 
the     markets were roughly behaving in a man-
ner  whaeh eould  be  justified  After that, I 
think there was an excessive rise.    I do submit 
to you that Finance Minister I was   worried   
about that.   Now the question is: If I knew what 
was happening to the      prices, what 
mechanism did I have to conrol the prices and 
what did i do? First of all, in   January I gave 
the   SEBI statutory powers. As ordinance   was 
issued. The SEBI was there as an advisory  
body for the last Ave years. It had no teeth.    
We brought an ordinance.    We converted    that    
ordinance into an Act of    Parliament in the last 
session of Parliament so that thereafter the stock 
markets could be policed effectively, that the 
perniciods practices of insider—traders could be 
dealt    with    effectively.    When    the markets 
started rising after the presentation of the 
budget, I was constantly in  touch  with the     
Chairman of the SEBI. On the 28th of    March I 
convened a cortferewee   of   all   the office-
bearers of the leading stock exchanges in the 
country, that is, Bombay, Madras, Calcutta and   
Delhi.    I told  them  that what was happening 
in the stock exchanges was not in the interest of 
our country and that they must see to it that the 
stock markets were properly policed and that      
the practises thai   were  giving rise      to 
speculative rises in prices were curbed.    I 
would have pursued that matter, but then, within 
a few days, there was a strike  o  brokers.  When  
these brokers went on strike, the attention got 
diverted to dealing with the consequences of 
that strike. 

At another level I had instructed the 
Governor of the Reserve Bank, as early as in 
October, 1991. that speculation in the stock 
market should not be fanned  by bank funds 
That is why in the credit policy that was 
announced in the month of October, 1991, the 
margin requirements    for    lending     against 
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shares  were  tightened.   I  asked  him to 
take further action in the     credit policy that 
he    announced in    April, 1992.   It is true    
that    the    markets were behaving in an 
erratic manner, but quite honestly at this 
stage I did not  know that  the securities 
market was the mechanism which was being 
used  to pump  money into the  stock market.    
When in March we started discussing this    
matter,    some    clues were brought to my 
notice.    I asked the Governor of the 
Reserve Bank to pursue  this    matter.     He    
reviewed certain   transactions   of   certain   
individuals with a particular bank and he 
came to the conclusion that the securities 
market was being misused. The starting 
point was the State Bank of India, so then 
we investigated      the State Bank of India.    
By the      first week of April the Reserve 
Bank had asked the State Bank of India to   
explain  the    whole    matter.     Between 
April 10 and 18, the    State    Bank of India 
was  able to square    up    these transactions.    
Thereafter the Resefve Bank of lndia came to 
the conclusion that that was not the end of 
the matter.    They pursued it and traced it to 
the National Housing Bank and A.N.Z. 
Then, of course, there was a public... 

 

SHRI INDER KUMAR GUJRAL: The 
hon. Minister may also let us know 
particularly about the National Housing 
Bank. How did it happen that the Reserve 
Bank did not come to know and after your 
initiative it came to its notice? 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA (Rajasthan): 
The Hon. Minister is quite right when he said 
that the Reserve Bank  Governor   put     
restrictions  on 

margin for lending for these shares, but in a 
particular case we have found out that the 
money from the banks had not gone through 
the lending window. It had gone from the 
Treasury. So, I would like him to shed  light 
on that. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: This is with 
regard to the role of the Government in this 
matter. 

Now, I come to the role of the Reserve Bank 
of India. The hon.  Member,  Shri  Gurudas  
Das  Gupta,      has mentioned that the Reserve 
Bank   of India knew about it.    He mentioned 
a  particular  report of  the      Reserve Bank of 
India with    regard    to    the working of the 
foreign banks,    which was available in  1990.   
I have looked at that report.   On the whole,      
that report is very complimentary    to    the 
foreign banks.    At the end of it   the Reserve 
Bank did say that in      their portfolio  
management    scheme,    they did find 
irregularities.    I crave     the indulgence of this 
House to make    a distinction between 
irregularities and fraudulent   transactions.   I 
had    been Governor of the Reserve Bank. 
Many a time you find irregularities, but from 
that   I   don't  think   it   is  self-evident that   
these  irregularities  are    in    the nature of 
fraudulent transactions. So, I  submit  to  this  
august    House  that these irregularities were 
discussed by the Reserve Bank of India with 
those particular banks and thereafter those 
banks  were  asked     to   correct  those things. 
But those irregularities which came to their 
notice at that time did not  point  to   fraudulent  
transactions. In  any case, those banks are the 
victims of that fraud. I do not think anything  
has  been     proved  to  say  that those  banks  
are  responsible  for  perpetrating the fraud. 

A reference has been made to the circular 
of July 1991. It is true that the Reserve Bank 
of India noticed in a .number of small banks 
that these facilities of the BRs and the 
securities   portfolios   were  being   mis- 
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used. The Reserve Bank issued a circular in 
July and I have seen that the Standard 
Chartered Bank and the State Bank of India 
sent explicit letters to the Reserve Bank of 
India that they were fully complying with the 
instructions contained in that particular 
circular. One can take a view that the Reserve 
Bank of India should not have been satisfied 
with that, but when a bank like the State Bank 
of India says under the signature of its 
Chairman that they were fully complying with 
those instructions, I really 'don't blame. the 
Reserve Bank of India when they believed the 
word of the Chairman of the State Bank of 
India. Now in retrospect one can be wiser by 
the tn ont. One- could have said that having 
discovered this thing, the Reserve Bank of 
India should have ordered there and then a 
special audit. But that I think is by hindsight. I 
do not doubt thy intantkns of the Reserve 
Bank of India. I do not believe that the 
Reserve Bank of India was in any way in the 
business of covering up. In fact, when the 
Reserve Bank of India and I came to know 
towards the end if the year—in January—that 
these three particular banks—I would not like 
to name them, they are small banks—were not 
obeying these instructions, the Reserve Bank 
of India asked for a special report. In fact, 
action was being contemplated against, those 
bank.;. In the meanwhile, I think the bigger 
dimension of the' problem, that is, the State 
Bank of India matter, came to the notice of the 
Governor of the Reserve Bank of India. He 
said "Welt, let us look at this matter in 
totality." In the press, for example, it has been 
said that the Governor of the Reserve Bank of 
India wanted to take action against the Bank of 
Karad in March but he was prevented from 
doing so, at the behest of some political 
power. I talked to the Governor. I have also 
looked at the file. I can tell you there was no 
such indication. There was a thinking on the 
part of the Governor that in this particular 
case, action should be taken. But alter dis-
cussions with officials, they came    to 

the conclusion that this action should be 
postponed until the credit policy meeting was 
convened. Madam, I would like to submit to 
you that there are  a large number of small 
banks in our country. 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA (West 
Bengal): Can I read out this part? I am just 
reading out for your kind information. Page 13 
about the transactions in foreign banks. "A 
scrutiny of portfolio management in some 
banks reveals serious irregular cases" not 
regular cases; "suitable action is being taken 
against the banks." Madam, I would only 
ciave your indulgence. What action has he 
taken with regard to the report that was 
submitted as far as back as 1990? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I have 
already mentioned that in these matters, 
discussions take place between the Reserve 
Bank of India and the bank concerned. These 
discussions did take place. I have already 
explained that position and this was the report 
submitted in 1990. I have been assured by the 
Reserve Bank of India that discussions were 
held with the concerned banks and at that 
stage thsre was no indication that these 
irregularities were in the nature of fraudulent   
transactions. 

Madam, now in the case of the Bank of 
Karad. I submit to you that there is no basis 
for the conclusion that anybody at political 
level interfered with any decision that the Re-
serve Bank of India wanted to take in this 
matter. The Reserve Bank of India was 
worried about the behaviour of the Bank of 
Karad in March. I have seen the relevant file 
myself. All that they did was "Let us warn the 
bank. But further action should be postponed 
until the credit policy meeting in April." I am 
myself satisfied with the Reserve Bank of 
India's intentions which were honourable, 
even though. I think, in retrospect one could 
argue that if they had taken quicker action, 
maybe this thing would have been stopped at 
an earlier date. 
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Madam, tfte Reserve Bank of India is a 
great national institution. I would like to say 
that... 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: About 
the Bank of Karad.,. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please don't 
interrupt him. I am not permitting' anything. 
Without my permission it is not going on 
record. Mr. Minister, please don't yield. If we 
allow like this, we will never finish our 
business . . . (Interruptions).. .1 ant not 
allowing. I am not permitting. 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: 
He has referred to the first letter. I 
am producing the second letter. That 
letter spoke of irregularities. It was 
in the month of January... (Interrup 

tions) ___  

THE. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN- I warn you, 
please don't interrupt. Let the Minister finish 
his reply first. If you still have any doubt, you 
may take my permission and ask a question. If 
you interrupt this ways we will never be able 
to finish our business. 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: I accept  
Madam. 

SHRI   MANMOHAN     SINGH:      In fact, 
referring to the second letter in March,   the  

Reserve  Bank of     India again wrote to these 
three banks and their Chief Executives  were     

called. This   is  with  regard  to  the     second 
letter,  not  with  regard to  the     first letter  of   

July.  All  that  I  want     to show is that the    
Reserve    Bank of India was not inactive in this 

matter though, I submit   one can argue that if 
they had been more active, maybe some of these 

things could have been avoided.   That  is,   by     
hindsight,     I think you can come to that 

conclusion. To  reasonable persons, I would like 
to say that the Reserve Bank of India is a great 
national   institution and   I would respectfully 
submit that comments on the Reserve Bank of     

India and its Governors should be      made with 
great restraint.   (Interruptions.). 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH:    Are    they holy 
cows? 

SHRI S JAIPAL REDDY (Andhra 
Pradesh): Madam, I think the Finance 
Minister is taking: undue advantage of the 
restraint we have shown so far. Are we to 
treat him as a boply cow? 
Are we to treat the RBI Governor as a holy 
cow?   (Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is    his  
view-point.     Let him speak. 
(Interruptions),. Nothing will go on record 
without my permission. I have requested hon. 
Members     very 
pleadingly to let him finish. I am quite sure 
that yous are not going to be satisfied with his 
answers. Maybe^ he is not satisfied with your 
arguments. But that does not mean that you 
should not permit him to speak. He did not 
interrupt you when- you spoke. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY:  * 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No. I am not 
permitting you. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY:  * 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA:     * 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I am on my 
legs. Please sit down. All of you, take your 
seats. 

SHRI        MANMOHAN SINGH: 
Madam,... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Just a 
minute, Mr. Finance Minister. When everyone 
of you was making his viewpoints on the floor 
of the House, I am sure the Finance Minister 
did not interrupt him. When he is making his 
reply, please have the courtesy not to interrupt 
him. If you are still not satisfied, you ean ask 
for permission to speak. I may allow you. But 
this is not the way.   (Interrupttons-) 

*Not recorded. 
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SHRI DIPEN GHOSH:   * 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Whatever it 
is, I am not permitting you. Please sit down. 
You may call anybody great or may not 
consider anybody great. But let him finish. 
No more interruptions, please. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I do not 
wish to imply that if the Reserve Bank of 
India has done anything wrong; it should be 
put under the carpet. I am not going to do that. 
If I discover that anything has been done by 
the Reserve Bank which is wrong, I will not 
shield anybody. I can assure you of that. But I 
would like to point out to you that we are 
dealing with this in a very uncertain situation. 
I think my colleague, Shri Yashwant Sinha, 
would support me on this. I think the situation 
that this country faced from December 1990 
onwards was a most unusually difficult 
situation on the balance of payments position. 
And I can certify to you that a very substantial 
part of the Governor's time was taken in 
dealing with this unprecedented crisis in the 
balance of payments. One has only 24 hours a 
day. Therefore, you cannot expect that in all 
matters, the  Governor... (Interruptions) . 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please let 
him finish 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: * 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No. I am not 
permitting you, Mr. Dipen Ghosh. This is not 
the way the House should run. I will not 
permit a running commentary, please. 
Anybody who is speaking wtihout my permis-
sion, except the Finance Minister, will not go 

on record. Let me use my discretion, please. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: * 

SHRI    MANMOHAN    SINGH:      I 
would   like   to   narrate   to  this   hon. 

*Not recorded. 

House that when I was a student, I think, Sir 
Paul Chambers, who was then the Chairman 
of the Imperial Chemical Industries, came... 
{Interruptions) 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: He is a student of 
Oxford... {Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Dipen 
Ghosh, please cool down. Let him speak. 
Don't get so excited. {Interruptions) 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I would like 
to say that in life, you have to take many 
decisions when you do not have complete 
information. Now, I was quoting Sir Paul 
Chambers. He stated: "If out of ten decisions 
that you took, five turned out to be correct, the 
shareholders would consider the job well 
done. If out of ten, seven turned out to be 
correct, that would be considered an 
outstanding performance. But I don't think 
human institutions are so infallible that you 
can expect each individual each institution to 
be right in ten out of. ten cases."  
(Interruptions) . 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: You have been 
proved as an outstanding person. 
... {Interruptions) . . .The Reserve Bank of 
India's Governor has been proved as an 
outstanding    Governor. 
{Interruptions) . 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. 

Dipen Ghosh and Mr. Gurudas Das 
Gupta, again I am reminding you, 
please don't make a habit of just 
getting up like this. Is is not becom 
ing of you. Please don't do it." 
(Interruptions) . 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: No 
Minister in the past has behaved in the way in 
which he is behaving. It is unusual.   
{Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gurudas 

Das Gupta, don't do it. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: There fore, 
I would submit that an institution' as well as 
an individual has to 
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be judged in totality. I submit to you that in 
this particular incident, the Governor's 
conduct has been consistent with what I would 
expect him to do. When he came to know that 
certain things were wrong... (Interruptions) 

SHRI MURASOLI MARAN: 
Madam, let him not give any certificate of 
good conduct to anybody. Let him defend 
himself. Let him not defend anybody.   
(Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If anybody 
speaks without my permission, it will not go 
on record. If my request has not been 
compiled with, I have to use my discretion. 
What else can I do? i have no other    way. 

SHRI    MANMOHAN    SINGH:    If that 
is the    wish of    the    House... 
(Interruptions) ... 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: Is it becoming of 
the Finance Minister to give a  certificate of 
conduct? 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let 
him speak. He has got his viewpoint. 
He has got a right to Speak. (Inter 
ruptions) Mr. Gurudas Dae Gupta, at 
least, have respect for yourself. I am 
requesting you. I know that you are 
agitated. Have some courtesy and lis 
ten to him. He listened to you 
patiently when you were speaking. 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: He did 
not listen to me. He never listened to me. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okey. Let 

him speak. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I think, 
Madam, Shri Inder Kumar Guj-ral asked about 
the National Housing Bank. It is true that what 
has happened in the National Housing Bank is 
simply deplorable. Now, it has been said that 
because the National Housing Bank is a 
subsidiary of the Re-1 serve Bank of India, 
therefore, the Re- 

serve Bank of India is responsible for this. I 
would like to submit to this House that even 
the State Bank of India is owned 98 per cent 
by the Reserve Bank of India. It has a separate 
management management structure. What has 
happened in the National Housing Bank is 
deplorable. But that does not mean that the 
Reserve Bank of India was a party to that sort 
of fraudulent transaction. (Interruptions) . 

SHRI INDER KUMAR GUJRAL: Madam, 
he has referred to me. You have to permit me. 
When I raised the issue of the National 
Housing Bank, kindly keep in mind the fact 
that the Reserve Bank of India acted like a 
sleeping goddess and if anything happened 
under it_ it is not being held responsible. If or 
its subsidiary bank, it is not responsible; for 
the nomination of Directors it is not 
rasponsibIe Is there something like a moral 
responsibility or not? Is there any constructive 
responsibility of any one or not? I am asking a 
simple question. Is the Reserve Bank of India 
Governor not responsible at all? If the RBI 
Governor is not responsible at all, if the 
Minister is not responsible at all, then let us 
forget the whole thing! 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am not 
saying that the Minister is not responsible for 
it. I would like to say that I accept 
responsibility for what happened in the 
financial system. I am not running away from 
my responsibility. I think it is for the House to 
judge whether I have discharged that 
responsibility or not, but all I am saying is that 
when a fraud is committed, since I think really 
there is no foolproof method to avoid a fraud 
in modern life. 

From the fraud you cannot conclude that the 
whole system is rotten. There are a lot of 
defects. I have mentioned myself there are 
weaknesses in the system, in the management 
structure and in banking services. The 
Reserve Bank of India   supervi- 
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sion -system needs to be strengthened. In fact, 
if the House would remember, 1 had set up 
the Narasimham Committee with one specific 
term of reference to look into the supervisory 
arrangements because I was aware of the fact 
that in the type of world in which we Hve, we 
need a much more modern supervisory 
system. So I do recognise that the supervisory 
system has proved inadequate, but this does 
not lead to culpability to the conclusion that 
the Reserve Bank or its Governor has been a 
party to this fraud.. . (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI SUBRAMANIAN SWAMY (.Uttar 
Pradesh): I think Mr. Finance Minister should 
know that his defence of the Reserve Bank 
Governor is far beyond the call of duty, I 
don't think he should go so far to defend him. 

SHRI N. K. P. SALVE  (Maharashtra) :   

Let him come to the next point 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH; Now I 
come to various other issues. 

SHRI DINESHBHAI TRIVEDI (Gujarat): 
Madam, please give me half a minute. Nov/ 
there are three claimants of who discovered 
the fraud. It is a matter of fact that the State 
Bank of India Managing Director has gone on 
record saying that he has discovered the fraud, 
and the RBI Governor says that he has 
discovered the fraud. The hon. Minister has 
just now mentioned that it was he who bought 
the Reserve Bank Governor's attention to 
what was happening in the market; that itself 
proves that the Reserve Bank Governor totally 
failed in his supervisory duty also. Second-ly, 
.... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is 
enough. Mr Finance Minister, please carry 
on.. .. (Interruptions) ... You can't make a 
speech. I am so sorry. 

SHRI     DINESHBHAI     TRIVEDI: 
Madam, last point...  (Interruptions)... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; I am sorry   
you   can't   do   it. 

SHRI DINESHBHAI TRIVEDI: If the SBI 
management has failed, have you asked for 
the resignation of the entire SBI directors? It 
is your contention not mine.    .. 
(Interruptions).., 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am sorry, 
I have answered that question yesterday I 
have not said that I discovered     he    fraud... 
(Interrup- 
tons) . .. 

SHRI DINESHBHAI TRIVEDI: I think he 
has no idea. ... (Interruptions') .. .But you 
have just now said that you brought the 
attention of the Governor of he RBI... 
(Interruptions) 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:    What 
are we having? Mr. Trivedi, this is not the 
way to treat an answer. There is no football 
match going on 
over here. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH; I say I 
discussed with the Governor, I discussed with 
the Chairman of SBI, all these matters on a 
day-to-day basis. From out of this the idea 
emerged that funds are flowing into the mar-
ket. And in fact, if you look at a question—I 
don't know if I have answered it in this House 
or the other House—on 24th April I did point 
out that a very large amount of funds was 
flowing into the market. So I am not claiming 
that I discovered the fraud. That sort of 
allegation, I respectfully submit, is not 
warranted. .. . (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH:* 

SHRI SUKOMAL SEN (West Bengal) : * 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, 
no comments. ...(Interruptions)... No 
comments are going on record. 
(Interruptions) .. . 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH:* 

*Not recorded. 
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THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: -No 
comment is going on record. No comment is 
going on record. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: Long before 
the Times of India reported it, the Reserve 
Bank of India, I think, had asked the State 
Bank of India to vreconcile their securities 
portfolio and that task has been completed by 
the time the Times of India made that report. 
So it is not correct to say-that the Times of 

India discovered the fraud. .. . 
(Interruptions)... 

Now I come to the role of foreign banks. 
Now, Dr. Murli Manohar Joshi has referred to 
the role    of    foreign banks.    I am not here* 
to defend the foreign banks.    The Reserve 
Bank of India has ordered a special audit    of 
the transactions o the foreign banks. But I 
would like to say that in this matter also    one    
should   remember that nearly 53 per cent of 
the   deposits of the foreign banks are FCNR. 
deposits.    Of the total    amount    of FCNR 
deposits in our system, nearly 40 per cent are 
accounted for by the foreign banks.   It is true 
that, whether we like it or not, non-resident 
Indians get better service and, therefore, we 
have, I think, such a large proportion of FCNR 
deposits    being     accounted for by the 
foreign banks.   Now, what has been revealed 
in the Janakiraman Committee Report, I think,    
does not warrant the  sweeping conclusions of 
the type that have   been   drawn.   If they have  
committed any irregularities, that would be 
revealed   by   the audit.    But I would 
respectfully submit that trading in securities, 
having a portfolio management    scheme,    is 
not a crime and we have a reputation to defend 
of treatinl      the     foreign banks, once they 
are in our country, in the same way as we treat 
our domestic banks and I propose to stick to 
that path.   But if any foreign bank is guilty of 
having violated our rules and regulations and 
our laws.      you have not assurance that we 
will take 

the strictest possible    action    against 
them. 

I think, a reference was made to the links 
between certain officials and the foreign 
banks. Now, I cannot provide a foolproof 
answer to that. I have, I think, mentioned in 
this House that a reference was made to 
myself that I have some children in the banks. 
I explained to this House, as far as I am 
concerned, I have no relative—I am saying no 
relative of mine, not only my dependent 
children but no relative of mine—in the 
banking system, leave aside the foreign 
banking system. 

Now, I want to say that a reference was 
made allegedly to coupen trade As far as the 
Ministry of Finance is concerned.... 

SHRI R. K. DHAWAN (Andhra Pradesh): 
What about the other Finance Ministry 
officials? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: All that I 
would say is that I am going to refer all that to 
the Cabinet Secretary to hold whatever 
investigations he wants. One investigation has 
been done. I think a reference was made to the 
Chairman of the Oil and Natural Gas 
Commission that he had a son working in the 
Citibank. The Chairman of the Oil and Natural 
Gas Gas Commission has written a letter to, I 
think, the hon. Member and in the copy to me 
he has denied that he has any sons working in 
the Citibank. (Interruptions)... I am telling 
you about one particular case. I have this 
confirmed information from the Chahv. man 
of the Oil and Natural Gas Commission that 
he has no sons working in the Citibank and 
that his son is a university professor 
somewhere. 

SHRI JAGDISH PRASAD MA-THUR 
(Uttar Pradesh) : The Chairman of the ONGC 
is being sent on leave.   Are you aware of it? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH; I am sorry, 
you raised   this    question.  ... 
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(Interruptions) ... A question was raised 
about his son and that Rs. 300 crores were 
deposited in the Citibank because of his 
connection. Now, I think, you can draw your 
own conclusion. 

SHRI JAGESH DESAI (Maharash. tra): I 
would like to Enow whether permission has 
been taken or not. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am going 
to refer these reports to the Cabinet Secretary 
to see if any violation of the Service Conduct 
Rules has been taken place.     
(Interruptions)... 

SHRI R. K. DHAWAN: You said that the 
ONGC Chairman had written a letter saying 
that the report of his son being employed in 
the Citibank is false. Do you mean to 
suggest... (Interruptions) . .. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; If you 
interrupt this way he cannot finish. 
(Interruptions) ... No, he cannot also 
interrupt. (Interruptions)... Considering the 
number of interruptions you have already 
done—if you go by the time and number—I 
think, Mr. Dhawan has got a right to interrupt. 
{Interruptions)... 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: Only one 
particular case was mentioned in the House; 
other cases were not mentioned. Newspapers 
have carried reports of the dependents of other 
officials being employed in foreign banks. I 
am going to ask the Cabinet Secretary to look 
into this matter if any Service Conduct Rules 
have been violated. I have no other 
information. I don't propose to defend anybody 
who has willingly or in any manner violated 
the norms that our Government. expects from 
its officials. Madam, these are some of the 
points which were made in the course of the 
debate. I believe that I have covered most of 
them. Now I come to the point which Shri 
Gurudas Das Gupta brought up. Shri Gurudas 
Das Gupta brought up a number of cases. I 
have already replied ... (Interruptions). 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let him deal 
one by one. He can't take all the names and all 
the points at the same time. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH; I have 
already answered about the circular that he 
quoted with regard to the foreign banks. I 
have also looked into the case of the Andhra 
Bank. I am satisfiea that the Andhra Bank or 
the Director of the Reserve Bank of India in 
that particular meeting had committed no 
impropriety. Indeed there was to discussion in 
that meeting on what amount ought to be pro-
vided for bad and doubtful debts. It is a 
normal procedure for the auditors to have a 
discussion with their clients. In this particular 
case the auditors had a discussion with their 
clients and at the end of it the auditors had 
sign. ed that report. Therefore, the type of 
inferences which my hon. friend was 
drawing, I submit to him respectfully that I 
don't share those inferences. He also 
brought... (Interruptions) . 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Can I 
make a point? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: No, let me 
finish. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let him 
finish. You had already made your point. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH; He also 
brought up a case of the Bank of Baroda, if I 
remember correctly. I have looked into the 
balance sheet. I am satisfied that there is 
nothing wrong with the balance sheet. The 
Bank of Baroda has no balance with the Bank 
of Karad. They have a balance with the BCCI 
against which they have a deposit of the 
BCCI. The whole amount is fuly secure. So. 
the Bank of Baroda has not committed any 
impropriety. Madam, through you, T wait to 
say one thing that banking is based on trust. If. 
people lose faith in our banking system if, 
today, there is a run or the banks, no- 
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body can really provide all the cash. This is not 
only true of India but this is true of every 
country, that the system does not have cash to 
provide it to every depositor. Therefore, it is 
incumbent on us that whenever we bring such 
charges—the Bank of Baroda is a bank of 
repute in our country—we ought to be a little 
more / careful. I don't want to hurt the feelings 
of my collague. I don't want to accuse him of 
malintentions. His intentions are entirely 
honorable. But I have looked into this particular 
matter. I am satisfied that the Bank of Baroda 
has not done anything wrong. Yesterday, he 
referred to the case of seven banks. I am 
prepared. to look into those seven banks. Let me 
be very candid with you. Over the year bad and 
doubtful debts debts have accumulated in our 
banking system. In fact, if you look at the 
Narasimham Committee Report, that was one of 
the reasons why I appointed the Narasimham 
Committee. It was appointed to clean up the 
banking system. It is not a one-day operation. 
We are going to move towards a transparent 
system where there will be adequate capital 
provisions. proper income recognition norms. 
But it requires. if 1 have to move towards the 
standard international norms, about Rs. 3000 
crores more to be pumped into the capital of the 
banks. If I have accumulated in our bank-and 
doubtful debts which have accumulated over the 
last several years, I need to provide for Rs. 
10,000 crores. Now, all these things cannot be 
done overnight. If you look at the Report of the 
Narasimham Committee that was one area... 
(Interrupttons) . 

 
SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: That is one 

area which is of concern. This is not a partisan 
matter. I share the concern that we must over 
a period... 

SHRI CHATURANAN MISHRA: You say 

that our criticism has led to 

misappropriation of Rs.   10,000    crores.   
(Interruptions). 

SHRI MANMOHAN  SINGH:  I did not 
say that. 

SHRI     CHATURANAN     MISHRA: You  

are  again  defending them. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I am saying, 
over a period of time bad and doubtful debts 
have accumulated. They have not accumulated 
in the last one year, they have accumulated 
over long period of time. We have to clean up 
our banking system. That is a task which 
requires infusion of a large amount of capital 
into the banking system. Therefore, those who 
are worried about such large 1,00 P.M. 
amounts of bad and doubtful debts. I expect 
them to support the tenor of the report of the 
Narasimham Committee. But my friends here 
get agitated whenever I mention the 
Narasimham Committee. If you really are 
serious about making the Indian Banking 
system viable ? competitive and efficient, there 
is no other alternative but to take the route of 
more capital adequacy, proper income 
recognition and proper provisioning; that is 
the direction in which we propose to move. . . 
(Interruptions) .. .1 thank the hon. Members 
who have taken part in this debate. If any 
doubts have been left I will be happy to clear 
them. Thank you... (Interruptions) . . . 

SHRI GURUDAS  DAS  GUPTA: 
Madam, since he referred to me in the last 
part, I am inviting his attention to some of my 
submissions which he might have forgotten. I 
had referred to a secret report of the United 
Commercial Bank which was submit-ed in 
January, 1992 and which was signed by Mr. 
Gurumurthy. I am just reading  a small 
paragraph: 

"Apart from the official transactions, the 
bank's Bombay Hamam Street Branch, 
unauthorisedly indulged in investment 
transactions of a large magnitude with daily 
turn- 
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over varying between Rs. 100 crores and 
Rs. 1000 crores at the behest of certain 
brokers by issuing bank official receipts 
thereby exposing the bank to serious risk." 

This is an absolute fraud.. .(Interruptions) ... 

THE DEPUTY  CHAIRMAN:  I am not 
allowing a full discussion No... 
(Interruptions)....   Please, Mr. Gurudas  Das     
Gupta... (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: I am not 
discussing, I am just referring to it.. . 
(Interruptions) ... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You have 
already made your point... (Interruptions) .. 
.Just a minute... (Interruptions) ...Please. ... 
(Interruptions) . . . 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Madam, 
this is a case fraud and it was brought to the 
notice of the Reserve Bank of India in 
January, 1992 and he comes to know of the so 
called scam only in April. In between four 
months have passed. At least in the case of the 
Reserve Bank of India, what happened?.. . 
(Interruptions') ... In the case of Andhra Bank 
. . . (Interrupttons) ... 

 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Rs. 
44000 crores was suggested by the auditors 
towards provision for bad and doubtful., 
debts. But the Bank did not meet the 
requirement and the auditors. . . 
(interruptions) ... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I am not 
permitting you to start another discussion. I 
have no authority to start this discussion all 
over again... (Interruptions) . .. Please, no. 
That is over... (Interruptions) ... Finished ... 
(Interruptions) ... Please take your seat... 
(Interruptions) ... Please do not  strain. .. 
(Interruptions) .. . 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: One 
point. In the case of Andhra Bank, Rs. 44,000 
crores was the suggestion of the auditors to 
which the management did not agree and 
afterwards the auditors were pressurised to 
sign it and the provision was brought down to 
a very small amount and as a result the bank 
is showing profits. I am protesting...(Interrup-

tions) ... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, Mr. 
Gurudas Das Gupta, take your seat. This is not 
the way... (Interruptions) ... .Don't raise your 
hand. I. am tions).. .Don't raise your hand. I 
am not permitting you.. .(Interruptions) ... 
Please, please... (Interruptions).. There is a 
procedure.. .(Interruptions) ... Just a minute... 
(Interruptions) even allowing me to announce 
the procedure. There is a procedure and we 
had a discussion. I had promised that if you 
were very, very dissatisfied... (Interruptions)... 
You could raise it.. . (Interruptions)... But you 
cannot raise new points, new evidence .. . 
(Interruptions) .. .No, I cannot allow that... 
(Interruptions) ... 

SHRI GURUDAS  DAS  GUPTA: 
There is a copy of my speech. This is a copy 
of my speech. I referred to all the points... 
(Interruptions) .:. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If you 
have already 
referred.  

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I have no 
information on this. I will supply this 
information about the United Commercial   
Bank... (Interruptions).., 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: But I had 
made that point on that day. You have 
forgotten...(Interruptions) ... 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:  
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[The Deputy Chairman] He will find out and 
let you know. Whatever you said he will find 
out.. (Interruptions) 

 

 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, you 
cannot raise another discussion... 
(Interruptions) I cannot permit another speech. 

DR. MURLI    MANOHAR    JOSHI:. He 
has not answered this question. 

 

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: The Finance 
Minister unfortunately, has not touched on 
many important points which have been made 
in this House. I have been listening to the 
debate. I know the points which have been 
made. He has totally ignored them. That is 
why the Members are not satisfied. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: His statement can 
be concluded in one sentence. 

DR. MURLI MANOHAR JOSHI: You say 

only one thing that the Reserve Bank is a holy 

cow or a sleeping 

beauty.  And all is 

well with the God in the heaven and all are 

happy with the share  market. 

_ 

 

... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: We are 

totaly dissatisfied with +he reply 
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THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: It is not fair, 
Mr. Gurudas Das Gupta. If somebody is 
making a point and I have identified him, 
please don't get up like th;s. Have some 
control over yourself. 

 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have to 
move on to    the other business. 

SHRI N. K. P. SALVE: Madam, I seek 
your indulgence for half a minute on a very 
important point. Madam, the cardinal 
principle of any sound banking system is the 
interest of the depositor. With reference to the 
Karad Bank—a very small bank, Madam—
you are penalising the people who are guilty 
of committing the fraud. . Please be unsparing 
on them and anyone who is connected with i.t 
But regarding the interests of the 

 

We  have got special  mentions.     We cannot 
go on with this. 
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depositors which are Rs. 50 to Rs. 60 crores 
worth—you are protecting the National 
Housing Bank, very rightly, and the State 
Bank—why don't you afford the same 
protection to the depositors of the Karad 
Bank? Is it not necessary in the interests... 
(Interruptions), tn the interests of ensuing 
higher credibility of the Indian banking 
system? 

 
SHRI ' MANMOHAN SINGH: Madam, I 

share the sentiments that the depositors of the 
Karad Bank should be helped. We are making 
every effort to see that their interests are 
protected to the maximum possible extent. I 
would also like to... (Inerruptions) I would 
also like to reply to some points... (Interrup-
tions) . Now I think a reference was made by 
an hon. Member as to why the NRI funds.. 
.(Interruptions) . 

 
THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:  Please let 

him speak.  You don't disturb. 

SHRI  MANMOHAN      SINGH:     A 
reference was made by an hon. Mem-      ber  
as to why     the     'foreign   banks     should  
have   such  a  disproportionate    amount 'of 
NRI funds.  I am sorry    cannot help it.    If 
they provide bet-     ter service, if    non-
resident   Indians have    better     confidence... 
(Interruptions) .   So,  therefore,  there is  
nothing. .. (Interruptions) . 

SHRI JAIPAL REDDY: Madam, as a 
protest against the totally unsatisfactory reply 
of the hon. Finance Minister, we stage a 
walk-out... (Interruptions) . 

[At this stage, some    hon.    Members    
left the Chamber]  

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Special 
menuonj... (Interruptions) 

SHRI      VISHVJIT      P. SINGH 
(Maharashtra); Madam, before- you start 
special -mentions,- may I mention one 
special mention? 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH: Madam, our 
banks have been here for years, ever since 
they were nationalised to provide service to 
the poor of this world, to the poor of the coun-
try . They were not here to provide service for 
the rich people and to-day we are changing 
OUT 'attitude. We are trying to provide service 
also for the rich. That is why, the rich pec pie 
deposit their money there. 'So, Indian banks 
have always been here to service the poor of 
this nation. I want to place that on record. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:      That is 

being put on record.  

 

 

 


